

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 10th DECEMBER 2021

APPROVED MINUTES - OPEN SECTION

Members		Meeting 1 03.11.21	Meeting 2 10.12.21	Meeting 3 24.03.22	Meeting 4 15.06.22
Independent	Ms Kru Desai	\checkmark	✓		
Members of	Ms Julia Palca	✓ by MS Teams	A		
Council	Ms Jen Tippin (Chair)	✓	✓		

Key: ✓ In Attendance

A Apologies given NM Not a Member P Part Attendance

In Attendance	Reason and Meeting Section	
Dr William Jordan	College Secretary	
Ms Katharyn Kingwill	Governance Officer	
Ms Mary Luckiram	HR Director	
Ms Maggie Reid	Reward Manager	
Professor Anthony Finkelstein	President	

MINUTES SECTION A – OPEN FOR PUBLICATION

Part One – Preliminary Items

1. Items for Starring

The Committee agreed the starring of all items on the agenda.

2. Minutes

The Committee approved the minutes of the meetings held on 3rd November 2021. The open section of the meeting would be published on the City website in due course.

3. Conflicts of Interest

There were none declared.

4. Items Specially Brought Forward by the Chair

The Chair noted that a business case for the appointment to the role of Interim Dean of SASS had been agreed via circulation and that an additional business case would be discussed under item 6.

Part Two – Higher Paid and Senior Staff – issues requiring attendance of President

5. Senior Staff Reporting to the President

5.1 RemCo considered a proposal to create a new role of Vice-President (Digital & Student Experience) commencing on 1st January 2022, first discussed at the meeting held on 3rd November. RemCo had requested further information on the proposal so that it could be considered in relation to the role of VP (Education) and in the wider context of the objectives of the members of the Senior Leadership Team. The Chair of RemCo and the President had since met to discuss the extent of the transformation needed in the organisation and the proposal for some additional management capacity, particularly given the decision that Deans would report to him in order to create greater alignment between Schools. The proposed VP role would allow for a greater focus on the digital

transformation of City during the three years of the appointment. A co-working plan had also been developed with the postholder for VP (Education) and the proposed postholder for VP (Digital & Student Experience). In discussion the following points were made:

- It was inevitable when managing change that adjustments would be required, and it was important to ensure sufficient capacity in the leadership team to provide strategic direction and to manage pinch points.
- The President would review the structure of Senior Leadership Team after three years.
- The President would develop a Critical Path of actions to assist RemCo with its oversight of the objectives of the Senior Leadership Team and to provide assurance to Council on progress of the transformation. **[Action]**
- It was not anticipated that the timeline for transformation would need to be extended.

Decision

RemCo **approved** the addition to the Senior Team of a post of VP (Digital & Student Experience) from 1st January 2022, and the appointment of Professor Susannah Quinsee to this post.

This item is continued in Section B of the minutes, Closed Business.

5.2 RemCo considered the proposed base pay salary ranges for the appointments of Deputy President and Deans. It was anticipated that the appointees would be Band Two or Band Three professors and that they would receive a responsibility allowance in addition to base pay. The President noted however that City would seek to appoint a senior practitioner to one of the roles as this would also enhance the skillset of the Leadership Team, but it was not anticipated that the proposed total remuneration would be outside the range proposed. RemCo would be asked to approve the business cases for the selected candidates.

Decision

RemCo **approved** the proposed base pay salary ranges for the roles of Deputy President, the Dean of the School of Journalism, Cultural and Creative Industries and the Dean of the School of Policy & Social Change. All three roles would be in receipt of the agreed responsibility allowance for Deputy President and Dean respectively.

This item is continued in Section B of the minutes, Closed Business.

- **5.3** RemCo **considered** a report on the additional costs accrued from appointments to the Senior Leadership Team. The report noted both recurrent and non-recurrent costs exclusive of on-costs. In discussion the following points were made:
 - The analysis provided RemCo with the information needed to monitor costs and benefits.
 - The aggregate cost of the changes to the Senior Team were not insubstantial. This should be balanced against the increased capacity needed to manage the extent of strategic transformation which was greater than initially anticipated
 - There remained the question as to whether further change was needed and what would be the likely cost variation if so.
 - In the President's view the management team should now be stable for the next few years and not require further substantive change. The development of the critical path analysis of the transformation actions should provide some assurance on this.
 - There was some opportunity for flexibility via review of posts currently held on an interim basis which might reduce the overall cost of the management team.
 - The Chair of RemCo would relay RemCo's discussion to the Chair of Council. [Action]

RemCo noted the incremental cost of the Senior Leadership Team and the additional benefits this would bring in terms of driving the transformation that Council wished to see.

6. Proposed Salary Adjustments

6.1 RemCo considered a request for a member of staff in Bayes Business School. The salary adjustment would be as a result of their appointment to Interim Head of Faculty of Management.

Decision

RemCo **approved** the recommendation for a salary adjustment for a member of staff in Bayes Business School.

This item is continued in Section B of the minutes, Closed Business.

6.2 Proposal for a Retention Payment [Tabled item]

RemCo considered a tabled request for a retention payment to a member of staff in Bayes Business School, following an offer of employment from a competitor institution. The request for agreement was in principle as the case was subject to a request for full information on the individual's offer under the Retention Protocol agreed by RemCo. In discussion the following points were made:

- The Interim Dean of Bayes had indicated that the member of staff was worth retaining and should the individual agree to stay at City they would be encouraged to seek promotion to professor; the President wished to support this decision.
- It was unclear whether a retention payment would resolve the individual's desire to leave City; but if this was not the case or in the event of a counter offer, the offer to the individual should not be increased.
- The President would now develop a strategic approach to handling any future requests of this nature, noting that in principle his inclination was not to support retention payments to counter job offers. This would involve developing a set of principles to inform future decisions.
- To inform the proposed approach, the Interim Dean had been asked to develop a list of exceptional people he would not wish to see leaving Bayes for rival institutions. Such a list had been developed by a previous Dean of the School to inform requests for retention payments.
- The HR Director noted that this review and approach would be based on the Bayes Remuneration Framework, which had led to a decrease in requests for retention payments since it had been adopted.
- Requests should not normally be submitted to RemCo so close to the deadline for decision.

Decisions

RemCo **approved** the proposed business case for a retention payment, subject to further due diligence and receipt of full details of the offer received, and **agreed** that a retention strategy for exceptional staff members should be developed by the Dean of School.

This item is continued in Section B of the minutes, Closed Business.

Part Three – Items for Information

7. AOB and Date of Next Meeting

The next meeting would take place on 24th March 2022 at 9 am.

Jen Tippin Remuneration Committee Chair December 2021